

**DAILY PROOF OF THE OFFICIAL JOURNAL
OF THE
SENATE
OF THE
STATE OF LOUISIANA**

SEVENTH DAY'S PROCEEDINGS

**Forty-Third Regular Session of the Legislature
Under the Adoption of the
Constitution of 1974**

Senate Chamber
State Capitol
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Thursday, April 20, 2017

The Senate was called to order at 9:10 o'clock A.M. by Hon. John A. Alario Jr., President of the Senate.

Morning Hour

CONVENING ROLL CALL

The roll being called, the following members answered to their names:

PRESENT

Mr. President	Gatti	Morrish
Allain	Hewitt	Peacock
Appel	Johns	Peterson
Bishop	LaFleur	Riser
Boudreaux	Lambert	Smith, G.
Carter	Long	Tarver
Chabert	Luneau	Thompson
Claitor	Milkovich	Walsworth
Cortez	Mills	Ward
Donahue	Mizell	White
Fannin	Morrell	
Total - 32		

ABSENT

Barrow	Erdey	Perry
Colomb	Martiny	Smith, J.
Total - 6		

The President of the Senate announced there were 32 Senators present and a quorum.

Prayer

The prayer was offered by Pastor Jeff Ginn, following which the Senate joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag of the United States of America.

Reading of the Journal

On motion of Senator Riser, the reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal of April 19, 2017, was adopted.

Introduction of Senate Resolutions

Senator Johns asked for and obtained a suspension of the rules to read Senate Resolutions a first and second time.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 40—

BY SENATORS JOHNS, ALARIO, ALLAIN, APPEL, BARROW, BISHOP, BOUDREAU, CARTER, CHABERT, CLAITOR, COLOMB, CORTEZ, DONAHUE, ERDEY, FANNIN, GATTI, HEWITT, LAFLEUR, LAMBERT, LONG, LUNEAU, MARTINY, MILKOVICH, MILLS, MIZELL, MORRELL, MORRISH, PEACOCK, PERRY, PETERSON, RISER, GARY SMITH, JOHN SMITH, TARVER, THOMPSON, WALSWORTH, WARD AND WHITE

A RESOLUTION

To express the sincere condolences of the Senate of the Legislature of Louisiana upon the passing of Daniel Phillip Ieyoub.

On motion of Senator Johns the resolution was read by title and adopted.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 41—

BY SENATORS BISHOP AND CARTER
A RESOLUTION

To commend the United Association of Plumbers and Steamfitters Local 60 upon the celebration of its 125th Anniversary of its service and leadership to the community on April 22, 2017.

On motion of Senator Bishop the resolution was read by title and adopted.

**Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on
Second Reading to be Referred**

SENATE BILL NO. 243—

BY SENATOR PEACOCK
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 47:6035(A), (B)(2), (C)(1), (D), and (E) and to repeal R.S. 47:6035(C)(1) and (D) as amended by Section 5 of Act 125 of the 2015 Regular Session of the Legislature, relative to the tax credit for conversion of vehicles to alternative fuel usage; to remove the refundability of the credit; to reduce the credit rate for the conversion of vehicles and fueling equipment; to provide for the calculation of the credit for purchases of new vehicles originally equipped to be propelled by an alternative fuel; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Revenue and Fiscal Affairs.

SENATE BILL NO. 244—

BY SENATOR CARTER
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 33:4574.1(A)(1)(b) and 4574.1.1(C)(1) and to enact R.S. 47:301(6)(d), relative to certain state and local sales taxes; to exclude certain facilities from the definition of hotel for purposes of sales taxes and hotel occupancy taxes; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Revenue and Fiscal Affairs.

SENATE BILL NO. 245—

BY SENATOR MORRELL
AN ACT

To repeal Part I of Chapter 12-A of Title 33 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, comprised of R.S. 33:4701 through 4708, relative to the New Orleans Regional Business Park; to abolish the entity; to provide for inventory of assets, settlement of liabilities and distribution of remaining property and funds; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Local and Municipal Affairs.

SENATE BILL NO. 246—

BY SENATOR MORRELL
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 33:4082.1, relative to the New Orleans Sewerage and Water Board; to authorize the board to sell its services to neighboring parishes; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Local and Municipal Affairs.

SENATE BILL NO. 247—

BY SENATOR MORRELL
AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 33:4076, relative to the New Orleans Sewerage and Water Board; to provide for classification of board; to provide for civil service classification of certain employees; to provide regarding civil service exam; to require written reasons for termination for cause; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

April 20, 2017

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Local and Municipal Affairs.

SENATE BILL NO. 248—

BY SENATOR MORRELL

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 47:6034(C)(1)(a)(ii)(aa) and (bb), (4), and (K) and to repeal R.S. 47:6034(C)(1)(a)(ii)(bb) as amended by Section 5 of Act No. 125 of the 2015 Regular Session of the Legislature, relative to tax credits; to provide for an annual credit cap for the musical and theatrical production income tax credit; to provide for a termination date; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Revenue and Fiscal Affairs.

SENATE BILL NO. 249—

BY SENATOR CHABERT

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 49:214.5.4(E)(5), relative to the Coastal Protection and Restoration Fund; to provide for the disbursement of monies in the fund for hurricane protection purposes; to define certain terms; to provide for effectiveness; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Finance.

SENATE BILL NO. 250—

BY SENATOR BOUDREAUX AND REPRESENTATIVE DUSTIN MILLER

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 33:2740.39(A), (B)(2), (C)(1), (2), (3), (5), and (6), and (E)(15)(a) and to enact R.S. 33:2740.39(E)(15)(f), relative to the Opelousas Downtown Development District; to provide for the governance of the district; to provide for the purpose, authority, rights, powers, and duties of the district and its governing authority, including economic development and taxing authority; to provide with respect to boundaries; to provide for the levy of sales taxes; to provide for an election; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Local and Municipal Affairs.

SENATE BILL NO. 251—

BY SENATOR LAFLEUR

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 39:91 and to enact Subpart F-2 of Part II-A of Chapter 1 of Subtitle I of Title 39 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, to be comprised of R.S. 39:99.51 through 99.69, relative to the issuance of bonds to securitize the state's allocation of the economic damage settlement of the Deepwater Horizon oil spill economic damage litigation; to create the Louisiana Economic Financing Corporation; to provide for the qualifications of the members of the Louisiana Economic Financing Corporation; to provide for the authority of the Louisiana Economic Financing Corporation to issue bonds; to provide for the sale of certain assets of the state to the Louisiana Economic Financing Corporation; to provide for the deposit of the proceeds of the sale into the Deepwater Horizon Economic Damages Collection Fund; to authorize the financing, purchase, ownership, and management of payments from the Deepwater Horizon economic damage settlement; to provide for the security for the payment of the bonds; to provide for bond validation actions; to provide for tax exemptions; to provide for ancillary contracts and derivative instruments; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Finance.

SENATE BILL NO. 252—

BY SENATORS PETERSON, BISHOP AND CARTER

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 47:551(D)(4)(b)(i), relative to the automobile rental tax; to provide for the dedication of the local automobile rental tax collected in Orleans Parish; to provide for an effective date; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Revenue and Fiscal Affairs.

SENATE BILL NO. 253—

BY SENATOR RISER

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 47:297.14, relative to individual income tax; to provide for a credit against state income taxes for certain medical expenses paid by certain state employees; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Revenue and Fiscal Affairs.

Senator Long in the Chair

Senate Resolutions on Second Reading

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 36—

BY SENATOR BARROW

A RESOLUTION

To recognize the month of April as Sarcoidosis Awareness Month in Louisiana and to designate April 19, 2017, as Sarcoidosis Awareness Day at the state capitol.

On motion of Senator Barrow the resolution was read by title and adopted.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 37—

BY SENATORS HEWITT AND GATTI

A RESOLUTION

To recognize the Junior Auxiliary of Slidell and to designate April 2-8, 2017, as Junior Auxiliary Week at the Louisiana Senate.

On motion of Senator Hewitt the resolution was read by title and adopted.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 38—

BY SENATOR BISHOP

A RESOLUTION

To commend the 2016-2017 University of New Orleans Privateers Men's Basketball team as the 2016-2017 Southland Conference Champions; to commend Head Coach Mark Slessinger as the 2016-2017 Southland Coach of the Year and 2016-2017 Louisiana Coach of the Year; and to commend Erik Thomas as the 2016-2017 Southland Conference Player of the Year and 2016-2017 Louisiana Player of the Year.

On motion of Senator Bishop the resolution was read by title and adopted.

SENATE RESOLUTION NO. 39—

BY SENATOR MILKOVICH

A RESOLUTION

To direct each state retirement system to provide the Senate Committee on Retirement with comprehensive quarterly reports on the funds invested, a listing of each investment and with whom, the returns on each investment and the fees paid for services related to that investment, the formula by which the fees are calculated, and to whom paid, commencing with the quarter beginning on July 1, 2017.

The resolution was read by title and referred by the President to the Committee on Retirement.

Senate Concurrent Resolutions on Second Reading

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 36—
 BY SENATORS PEACOCK AND GATTI AND REPRESENTATIVES BAGLEY AND JENKINS
 A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To commend and congratulate the Louisiana Association for the Blind of Shreveport, Louisiana, on the occasion of its Ninetieth Anniversary and to recognize the many opportunities and enrichment it provides for the visually impaired.

The concurrent resolution was read by title. Senator Peacock moved to adopt the Senate Concurrent Resolution.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. President	Gatti	Morrell
Allain	Hewitt	Morrish
Bishop	Johns	Peacock
Boudreaux	LaFleur	Peterson
Carter	Lambert	Riser
Chabert	Long	Smith, G.
Claitor	Luneau	Tarver
Cortez	Milkovich	Thompson
Erdey	Mills	Walsworth
Fannin	Mizell	Ward
Total - 30		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Appel	Donahue	Smith, J.
Barrow	Martiny	White
Colomb	Perry	
Total - 8		

The Chair declared the Senate adopted the Senate Concurrent Resolution and ordered it sent to the House.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 37—
 BY SENATOR PEACOCK
 A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION
 To commend the officers and members of the Bossier Chamber of Commerce on the occasion of its seventieth anniversary.

The concurrent resolution was read by title. Senator Peacock moved to adopt the Senate Concurrent Resolution.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. President	Gatti	Morrell
Allain	Hewitt	Morrish
Bishop	Johns	Peacock
Boudreaux	LaFleur	Peterson
Carter	Lambert	Smith, G.
Chabert	Long	Tarver
Claitor	Luneau	Thompson
Cortez	Milkovich	Walsworth
Erdey	Mills	Ward
Fannin	Mizell	
Total - 29		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Appel	Donahue	Riser
Barrow	Martiny	Smith, J.
Colomb	Perry	White
Total - 9		

The Chair declared the Senate adopted the Senate Concurrent Resolution and ordered it sent to the House.

Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on Second Reading Reported by Committees

SENATE BILL NO. 4—
 BY SENATOR MARTINY
 AN ACT

To enact R.S. 51:703(D)(4)(d), relative to investment adviser representatives; to provide for registration; to provide for examination and certification requirements; to exempt certain persons from the examination and certification requirements; to provide for an effective date; to provide for certain terms and conditions; and to provide for related matters.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection, and International Affairs.

SENATE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senate Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection and International Affairs to Original Senate Bill No. 4 by Senator Martiny

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, delete line 5, and insert:

"Section 2. This Act shall become effective upon signature by the governor or, if not signed by the governor, upon expiration of the time for bills to become law without signature by the governor, as provided by Article III, Section 18 of the Constitution of Louisiana. If vetoed by the governor and subsequently approved by the legislature, this Act shall become effective on the day following such approval."

On motion of Senator White, the committee amendment was adopted. The amended bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 55—
 BY SENATOR MILLS
 AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 40:973(A) and 978(F) and to enact R.S. 40:978.3, relative to prescribing controlled dangerous substances; to provide for automatic renewal in the prescription monitoring program; to provide for mandated access of the program by prescribers; to provide for exceptions; to provide for continuing education requirements; to provide for rulemaking; to provide for effective dates; and to provide for related matters.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

SENATE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senate Committee on Health and Welfare to Original Senate Bill No. 55 by Senator Mills

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 2, line 11, after "prescriber" insert "or his delegate"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 2, lines 12 and 13, delete "Schedule II controlled dangerous substance" and insert "opioid"

April 20, 2017

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 2, line 22, change "hospital inpatient" to "patient being treated in a hospital"

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, between lines 27 and 28, insert the following: "(e) No more than a single seven day supply of the drug is prescribed or administered to a patient."

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 3, delete lines 22 through 29 and on page 4, delete lines 1 and 2 and insert the following: "holds a controlled dangerous substance license shall obtain three credit hours of continuing education as a prerequisite to license renewal with their professional licensing board. Successful completion of this requirement once shall satisfy the requirement in full."

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 4, line 3, delete "(4)" and insert "(2)"

On motion of Senator Mills, the committee amendment was adopted. The amended bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 66— BY SENATOR BARROW

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 46:2605(A)(6) and 2607, to enact R.S. 46:2605(A)(7), and to repeal R.S. 46:2801, relative to the Children's Cabinet; to provide for extension of the Cabinet; to provide for duties of the Children's Cabinet Advisory Board; to provide for the repeal of the Child Poverty Prevention Council for Louisiana; and to provide for related matters.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

SENATE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senate Committee on Health and Welfare to Original Senate Bill No. 66 by Senator Barrow

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, delete lines 2 and 3 and insert the following:

"To amend and reenact R.S. 36:4(B)(8) and R.S. 46:2402(3) and (6), 2403(A), (D)(1) and (E), 2404(A), (B)(1) and (2) and (G), 2405, 2406(A), (B), (D), (E), (F) and (G), 2407, 2605(A)(6) and 2607, to enact R.S. 46:2404(H), 2603(A)(7) and 2605(A)(7), and to repeal R.S. 36:478(F) and (K) and 802.9 and R.S. 46:450.4 and 2801, relative to the Children's Cabinet; to provide for extension of"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 5, after "Louisiana;" insert "to provide for the transfer of the Children's Trust Fund to the Children's Cabinet; to provide for duties of the Children's Cabinet relative to the Children's Trust Fund; to provide for Children's Trust Fund staff reallocation;"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, delete lines 8 and 9 and insert the following: "Section 1. R.S. 36:4(B)(8) is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

§4. Structure of executive branch of state government

B.

(8) The Children's Cabinet and the Children's Cabinet Advisory Board, as more specifically provided in R.S. 46:2601 through 2607, the Children's Trust Fund, as more specifically provided in R.S. 46:2401 through 2407, and the Council on the Status of Grandparents Raising Grandchildren, as more specifically provided in R.S. 46:2605.1 through 2605.3, shall be placed within the office of the governor.

Section 2. R.S. 46:2402(3) and (6), 2403(A), (D)(1) and (E), 2404(A), (B)(1) and (2) and (G), 2405, 2406(A), (B), (D), (E), (F) and (G), 2407, 2605(A)(6) and 2607 are hereby amended and reenacted and R.S. 46:2404(H), 2603(A)(7) and 2605(A)(7) are hereby enacted to read as follows:

§2402. Definitions

Except where the context clearly indicates otherwise, in this Chapter:

(3) "Department" means the Department of Children and Family Services. "Cabinet" means the Children's Cabinet, as provided for in R.S. 46:2601 et seq.

(6) "Office" means the office of children and family services the governor.

§2403. Creation of the Children's Trust Fund

A. There is hereby established a special fund in the state treasury to be known as the "Children's Trust Fund", consisting of monies provided by the legislature and monies received from any other sources, including funds derived from donations of income tax refunds as provided in R.S. 47:120.33 47:120.35 and funds derived from fees as provided in Subsection B hereof. The legislature shall make yearly appropriations to the fund for the purposes set forth in this Chapter to the extent that state funds are available.

D.(1) The monies in the fund shall be used solely for programs designed to prevent the physical and sexual abuse and gross neglect of children. Disbursement of the amount appropriated each year shall be made as determined by the Children's Cabinet with consideration of recommendations made by the Children's Trust Fund Board. All unexpended and unencumbered monies in this fund at the end of the fiscal year shall remain to the credit of the fund.

E. The board Children's Cabinet shall determine the eligibility of programs to receive funding based upon a non-biased scoring system by a volunteer grant reviewer and recommendations by the Children's Trust Fund Board, and the administration of the fund shall be exercised by the office of children and family services of the Department of Children and Family Services the governor in accordance with the directives of the board cabinet and the provisions of R.S. 36:802.9 36:4(B)(8) and R.S. 46:2407.

§2404. Louisiana Children's Trust Fund Board; created; membership A. There is hereby established the Louisiana Children's Trust Fund Board within the office of the governor, which shall serve as a subcommittee of the Children's Cabinet children and family services of the Department of Children and Family Services.

B. The Louisiana Children's Trust Fund Board shall be composed of fifteen members as follows:

(1) The secretary of the Department of Children and Family Services, or his designee. The executive director of the Children's Cabinet, or his designee.

(2) The assistant secretary of the office of children and family services of the Department of Children and Family Services, or his designee.

G. The board shall make recommendations to the Children's Cabinet on the following:

(1) Promulgate rules Rules and regulations necessary to implement the provisions of this Chapter.

(2) Review, evaluate, adopt, coordinate, and revise the The comprehensive state plan for child abuse prevention, as provided in R.S. 46:2406 and funded through the Children's Trust Fund.

(3) Have the authority to contract, in accordance with applicable provisions of state law, for the provision of services needed to coordinate, develop, and write a comprehensive state plan for child abuse prevention.

(4) Review, evaluate, and award grants Funding amounts of grant proposals from the fund for child abuse and neglect prevention programs as provided in R.S. 46:2407.

(5) Prepare and submit an annual report to the legislature and to the governor sixty days prior to each regular legislative session.

(6) (4) Adopt the budget request Budget requests for the board that if approved by the cabinet shall be presented by the

~~executive director of the cabinet to the and present it to the office of children and family services, the governor and the executive budget office, and the Joint Legislative Committee on the Budget.~~

~~(7) (5) Monitor, evaluate, and review the The development and quality of services and child abuse prevention programs funded through the Children's Trust Fund.~~

~~(8) Develop, implement, and administer a community-based family center program in accordance with R.S. 46:450-4.~~

H. The board shall prepare and submit to the cabinet for review an annual report regarding the status of the fund that, once approved by the cabinet, shall be submitted to the legislature sixty days prior to each regular legislative session.

§2405. Louisiana Children's Trust Fund Board; staff; duties

A. The board, with the approval of the ~~secretary of the department~~ **executive director of the Children's Cabinet**, shall appoint an ~~executive director~~ **coordinator** for the board who shall be in the unclassified service **and who shall report to the executive director of the Children's Cabinet.**

B. The commissioner of administration shall make available one additional position to the table of organization of the office of ~~children and family services~~ **the governor** in order to provide for the position of executive director **Children's Trust Fund coordinator.**

C. The ~~director~~ **coordinator** shall **perform duties and functions as required by the board and under the direction of the executive director of the cabinet.**

(1) Prepare the annual budget request for the board for adoption by the board.

(2) Act as agent for the board in the performance of its duties and subject to its direction and serve as secretary of the board.

§2406. Comprehensive state plan for child abuse prevention

A. The board shall ~~review and adopt~~ **make recommendations to the cabinet regarding** the comprehensive state plan ~~and any revision thereof, prior to transmittal of the plan as provided in this Section.~~

B. ~~On or before January 1, 1989, the board~~ **The cabinet** shall transmit the comprehensive state plan for child abuse prevention programs funded through the Children's Trust Fund to the governor, the president of the Senate, and the speaker of the House of Representatives **every five years beginning on January 1, 2018, and shall be reviewed for necessary changes by the cabinet annually.**

* * *

D. The board shall ~~recommend by rule~~ **rules to the cabinet** that establish procedures for preparation and adoption of the plan.

E. Prior to adoption of the state plan, the ~~board~~ **cabinet** shall submit the plan it proposes to adopt to the Committees on Health and Welfare of the Senate and House of Representatives for their approval as provided in R.S. 49:968. The comprehensive state plan shall be subject to approval as provided in R.S. 49:968.

F. The board shall review the state plan at least biennially and ~~the board shall adopt~~ **make recommendations to the cabinet regarding** any needed revision.

G. The Department of Children and Family Services, the Department of Public Safety and Corrections, and the Department of Education shall participate and cooperate in the development of the state plan **as deemed necessary by the cabinet.**

§2407. Funding of children's trust fund programs

A. The ~~board in its annual budget request~~ **cabinet**, shall identify the amount of funds necessary for the implementation of this Chapter.

B. Monies appropriated or otherwise made available to the ~~board~~ **cabinet** to implement the provisions of this Chapter shall be disbursed as follows:

(1) The ~~board~~ **cabinet** shall adopt a formula **based on a recommendation by the board** for the distribution of funds from the Children's Trust Fund for programs and services for child abuse prevention which shall provide for the allocation of funds in each state planning district based upon the percentage of the total state reported cases of abuse and neglect reported in the state planning district and the percentage of the total state population under the age of eighteen years and upon the service and program needs of the district; and ~~after January 1, 1989, the comprehensive state plan.~~

(2) Any funds which are not utilized within a state planning district shall be reallocated to the remaining districts in accordance with the formula required by Paragraph (1) of this Subsection.

(3) Ten percent of the amount appropriated to the ~~board~~ **cabinet** may be used for administrative costs ~~of the board.~~ **This ten percent limitation shall not apply to costs for plan development and shall include provisions for staff support.**

C. Appropriations made for distribution by the ~~board~~ **cabinet** for programs and services shall be deposited in the fund and shall be disbursed by the office **of the governor** in accordance with directives of the ~~board~~ **cabinet.**

D. The board shall develop and, **once approved by the cabinet,** publish solicitations for grant proposals for grants to be funded from the Louisiana Children's Trust Fund for child abuse prevention programs and services which are designed to meet identified priorities.

(1) ~~After January 1, 1989, these priorities~~ **Priorities** shall be based upon information contained in the comprehensive state plan.

(2) A priority ranking shall be made based upon the extent to which a proposal meets identified needs, criteria for cost effectiveness, an evaluation component providing outcome data, and a determination that the proposal provides a mechanism for coordinating and integrating preventive services with other services deemed necessary for working effectively with families who are at risk of child abuse or neglect. Priority shall be given to primary and secondary prevention programs and services.

E. The ~~office~~ board shall review and evaluate all proposals submitted for ~~grants for children's trust fund programs~~ **funding** and services **and make recommendations to the cabinet regarding grant awards.** ~~The cabinet will make the final approval on grant awards.~~

F. ~~On and after January 1, 1989, all~~ **All** budget requests submitted by any private nonprofit agency to the legislature for funding of programs related to child abuse prevention shall conform to the ~~comprehensive state plan~~ **application process** and any subsequent revision of the plan adopted pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter. ~~The services and programs of the Department of Children and Family Services or any other public agency shall not be subject to the provisions of this Subsection.~~

* * *

§2603. Children's Cabinet; powers and duties

A. In order to carry out the purposes of this Chapter and the purposes for which it is created, the Children's Cabinet shall:

* * *

(7) Administer the Children's Trust Fund provided for in R.S. 46:2401 et seq.

* * *

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 2, delete line 15 and insert:

Section 3. R.S. 36:478(F) and (K) and 802.9 and R.S. 46:450.4 and 2801 are hereby repealed.

On motion of Senator Mills, the committee amendment was adopted. The amended bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 75—

BY SENATOR MILLS

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 36:259, 801.1(A), the introductory paragraph of 802, and 803, R.S. 37:753(B), (C)(4) and (J), 832(B)(2), 916(B), 962, 1042, 1104(A), (B)(1), and (C), 1174(B), 1263(B), (D) and (E), 1515(A)(2) and (3), (C), (D), (E) and (F), 2102(A), 2353(A)(1), (2) and (3), the introductory paragraph of 2403(B), 2455(B)(1) and (5), 2503(A)(3)(c), 2654(A), (B), (C) and (D), the introductory paragraph of 2704(A), (A)(5), (B) and (C), 2802(A)(1), (C), (D), (E), (F) and (G), 3061(A)(1)(a), the introductory paragraph of 3084(B)(1) and (C), the introductory paragraph of 3201(B)(1) and (B)(1)(c) and (C), the introductory paragraph of 3389(B), 3444(A), (B) and (C), 3463(A), (B) and (E), 3554(A)(1) and (B), 3703(B)(1), and R.S. 49:992(D)(5) and (G), to enact R.S. 36:260, R.S. 37:753(C)(5), 2102(C), 2403(B)(6), 2802(H), 3061(A)(1)(d), 3084(B)(1)(e), 3201(B)(1)(e) and (F), 3389(B)(6), 3554(A)(3), and 3703(B)(8), and to repeal R.S. 37:1263(F) and R.S. 40:5.11(C), (D), (E) and (F), relative to the health profession licensing boards created within the Louisiana Department of Health; to provide for responsibilities of the Louisiana

April 20, 2017

Department of Health; to provide for responsibilities of the health profession licensing boards created within the Louisiana Department of Health; to provide for board membership; to provide for effective dates; and to provide for related matters.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Health and Welfare.

SENATE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senate Committee on Health and Welfare to Original Senate Bill No. 75 by Senator Mills

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 11, line 25, after "Board of" delete "Wholesale" and after "Drug" insert "and Device"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 15, line 2, delete "for the sole purpose of ensuring" and insert "with the mission to ensure"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 15, lines 3 and 4, delete "that are appropriately trained and duly" and on line 4, after "Louisiana" insert a "." and delete the remainder of the line and delete lines 5 through 7

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 15, line 8, at the beginning of the line insert "In order to fulfill their mission, the legislature"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 16, line 8, after "act." delete the remainder of the line and delete lines 9 through 14.

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 16, delete lines 27 through 29

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 17, line 1, after "(3)" insert "(a)"

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 17, line 4, after "dismissed" insert "and all materials collected during the investigation shall be destroyed"

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 17, between lines 5 and 6, insert the following: "(b) The investigation time line established in this Paragraph may only be extended if there is an active federal agency investigation of the licensee and the federal agency requests the board not to take action against the licensee as such would impede a federal case."

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 17, line 6, after "report" insert ", including the lead investigator's recommendation."

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 17, line 18, after "law" insert "or regulation" and after "board" change "may" to "shall"

AMENDMENT NO. 12

On page 17, line 22, after "A" delete "plain, concise, and definite" and insert "plain and concise" and after "the" delete "essential"

AMENDMENT NO. 13

On page 17, at the end of line 29, insert "The licensee shall have thirty days to request an informal reconsideration or may immediately file for a hearing with the division of administrative law."

AMENDMENT NO. 14

On page 18, at the end of line 2, insert "If the licensee does not wish to negotiate a consent decree he may immediately file for a hearing with the division of administrative law."

AMENDMENT NO. 15

On page 18, at the end of line 6, insert "The licensee shall have thirty days from the date of receipt of the notice of adverse or disciplinary action by the board to file for a hearing with the division of administrative law. Such appeal shall be suspensive."

AMENDMENT NO. 16

On page 18, lines 13 and 14, delete "negotiate a per-appeal cost and"

AMENDMENT NO. 17

On page 20, between lines 26 and 27, insert the following: "K. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to change any of the following provisions and practices of the licensing boards or their licensees: (1) Scope of practice of the individuals licensed by each of the boards. (2) Ability to develop and administer exams, develop applications, process applications, and issue licenses. (3) Ability to conduct investigations, subpoena information, make determinations on complaints, and issue notices regarding disciplinary actions. (4) Ability to promulgate rules. (5) Ability to negotiate a settlement or consent decree with a licensee. (6) Ability to conduct hearings in matters that are not disciplinary or adverse."

AMENDMENT NO. 18

On page 23, line 26, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 27, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 19

On page 23, between lines 28 and 29, insert the following: "(v) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 20

On page 25, line 5, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 6, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 21

On page 25, between lines 7 and 8, insert the following: "(v) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 22

On page 25, line 21, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 22, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 23

On page 25, between lines 23 and 24, insert the following: "(e) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 24

On page 26, lines 23 and 24, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 25, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 25

On page 26, between lines 26 and 27, insert the following: "(e) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 26

On page 28, lines 3 and 4, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 5, delete

"under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 27

On page 28, between lines 6 and 7, insert the following:

"(e) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 28

On page 30, line 5, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 6, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 29

On page 30, between lines 7 and 8, insert the following:

"(ce) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 30

On page 31, lines 14 and 15, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 16, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 31

On page 31, between lines 17 and 18, insert the following:

"(e) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 32

On page 32, lines 20 and 21, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 22, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 33

On page 32, between lines 23 and 24, insert the following:

"(e) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 34

On page 34, lines 7 and 8, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 9, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 35

On page 34, between lines 10 and 11, insert the following:

"(e) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 36

On page 35, lines 18 and 19, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 20, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 37

On page 35, between lines 21 and 22, insert the following:

"(e) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 38

On page 36, line 29, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 39

On page 37, line 1, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 40

On page 37, between lines 2 and 3, insert the following:

"(ce) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 41

On page 37, line 21, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 22, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 42

On page 37, between lines 23 and 24, insert the following:

"(v) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 43

On page 38, line 25, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 26, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 44

On page 38, between lines 27 and 28, insert the following:

"(v) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 45

On page 39, line 18, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 19, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 46

On page 39, between lines 20 and 21, insert the following:

"(ce) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 47

On page 41, lines 3 and 4, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 5, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 48

On page 41, delete lines 7 through 9 and insert the following:

"(f) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 49

On page 43, lines 26 and 27, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 28, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 50

On page 44, delete lines 1 and 2 and insert the following:

"(e) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 51

On page 44, lines 26 and 27, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 28, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 52

On page 45, before line 1, insert the following:

"(e) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 53

On page 46, line 12, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 13, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

April 20, 2017

AMENDMENT NO. 54

On page 46, between lines 14 and 15, insert the following:
"(ee) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 55

On page 47, line 14, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 15, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 56

On page 47, between lines 16 and 17, insert the following:
"(v) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 57

On page 48, lines 13 and 14, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 15, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 58

On page 48, between lines 16 and 17, insert the following:
"(e) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 59

On page 49, line 8, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 9, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 60

On page 49, between lines 10 and 11, insert the following:
"(v) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

AMENDMENT NO. 61

On page 50, line 20, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)" and on line 21, delete "under the authority of the office" and insert "identified in R.S. 36:259(A)"

AMENDMENT NO. 62

On page 50, between lines 22 and 23, insert the following:
"(v) Shall not have nor shall ever have had a material financial interest in the health care profession."

On motion of Senator Mills, the committee amendment was adopted. The amended bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 104—

BY SENATOR APPEL

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 37:2163(A)(1), relative to contractors; to provide for bid specifications and requirements; to provide for certain conditions; and to provide for related matters.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection, and International Affairs.

SENATE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senate Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection and International Affairs to Original Senate Bill No. 104 by Senator Appel

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 12, change "by showing" to "by displaying"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 17, change "show" to "show display"

On motion of Senator White, the committee amendment was adopted. The amended bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 107—

BY SENATOR WHITE

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 32:1254(O), relative to distribution and sale of motor vehicles; to provide for a licensing exception for specialty vehicle dealers who manufacture wheeled, armored personnel carriers for sale to law enforcement agencies; and to provide for related matters.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection, and International Affairs.

SENATE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senate Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection and International Affairs to Original Senate Bill No. 107 by Senator White

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 4, after "agencies;" insert "to provide for an expiration date;"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, at the end of line 15, insert "The provisions of this Subsection shall expire on July 1, 2018."

On motion of Senator White, the committee amendment was adopted. The amended bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

SENATE BILL NO. 108—

BY SENATOR WHITE

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 37:1436(E) and (F), relative to licensing and registration of persons engaged in real estate activity; to provide for penalties; to provide for procedures, terms, and conditions; and to provide for related matters.

Reported with amendments by the Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection, and International Affairs.

SENATE COMMITTEE AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senate Committee on Commerce, Consumer Protection and International Affairs to Original Senate Bill No. 108 by Senator White

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 10, after "violation," insert "beginning from the date of receipt of the cease and desist letter issued by the commission,"

On motion of Senator White, the committee amendment was adopted. The amended bill was read by title, ordered engrossed and passed to a third reading.

Mr. President in the Chair

Rules Suspended

Senator Carter asked for and obtained a suspension of the rules to recall Senate Bill No. 69 from the Committee on Transportation, Highways and Public Works.

SENATE BILL NO. 69—

BY SENATOR CARTER

AN ACT

To enact R.S. 2:2, relative to unmanned aircraft; to provide exclusive jurisdiction to the state in the regulation of such systems; to preempt local ordinances, rules, regulations, and codes; to

provide for federal preemption; and to provide for related matters.

On motion of Senator Carter, Senate Bill No. 69 was read by title and recommitted to the Committee on Judiciary C.

Senate Bills and Joint Resolutions on Third Reading and Final Passage

Bagneris Rule

Senator Long moved to invoke the rule to temporarily pass over controversial Senate Bills on Third Reading and Final Passage with the intention of taking them up later, in their regular order and to specifically start with Senate Bill No. 52.

Without objection, so ordered.

SENATE BILL NO. 52—
BY SENATOR LONG

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 13:5554(G)(1) and to enact R.S. 13:5554(FF), relative to the premium costs of group hospital and health insurance for retired sheriffs and retired deputy sheriffs; to provide relative to premium costs for retired sheriffs and retired deputy sheriffs of the Natchitoches Parish Sheriff's Office; to provide for eligibility for payment of premium costs; to provide for applicability; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title. Senator Long moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. President	Fannin	Morrell
Allain	Gatti	Morrish
Appel	Hewitt	Peacock
Bishop	Johns	Riser
Boudreaux	LaFleur	Smith, G.
Carter	Lambert	Tarver
Chabert	Long	Thompson
Claitor	Luneau	Walsworth
Cortez	Milkovich	Ward
Donahue	Mills	White
Erdey	Mizell	
Total - 32		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Barrow	Martiny	Peterson
Colomb	Perry	Smith, J.
Total - 6		

The Chair declared the bill was passed and ordered it sent to the House. Senator Long moved to reconsider the vote by which the bill was passed and laid the motion on the table.

SENATE BILL NO. 64—
BY SENATOR GATTI

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 3:2463(C) and (E) and to enact R.S. 3:2462(6), (7), and (8) and 2465(E) and (F), relative to animal shelter operating procedures; to authorize animal shelters to post pictures of animals on a social media account or website; to require inspectors and shelter personnel to attend annual training; to require animal shelters to implement a seventy-two hour minimum hold time for stray animals; to provide for definitions; and to provide for related matters.

Floor Amendments

Senator Long submitted the following amendments on behalf of Senator Martiny.

SENATE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senator Martiny on behalf of the Legislative Bureau to Engrossed Senate Bill No. 64 by Senator Gatti

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 17, following beginning of line and before "**expected**" change "**will not be**" to "**is not**"

On motion of Senator Long, the amendments were adopted.

Floor Amendments

Senator Fannin proposed the following amendments.

SENATE FLOOR AMENDMENTS

Amendments proposed by Senator Fannin to Engrossed Senate Bill No. 64 by Senator Gatti

AMENDMENT NO. 1

On page 1, line 2, change "R.S. 3: 2462(6), (7), and (8)" to "R.S. 3:2462(6)"

AMENDMENT NO. 2

On page 1, line 3, after "2465(E)" delete "and (F)"

AMENDMENT NO. 3

On page 1, line 5, after "training;" delete the remainder of the line

AMENDMENT NO. 4

On page 1, line 6, delete "to implement a seventy-two hour minimum hold time for stray animals;"

AMENDMENT NO. 5

On page 1, delete line 10 and insert "3:2462(6) and 2465(E) are hereby enacted to read as follows:"

AMENDMENT NO. 6

On page 1, delete lines 15 through 17 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 7

On page 2, line 1, change "**(7)**" to "**(6)**"

AMENDMENT NO. 8

On page 2, delete lines 9 through 10 in their entirety

AMENDMENT NO. 9

On page 2, at the end of line 22, insert the following: "**The training requirement shall only apply if an online training option is available.**"

AMENDMENT NO. 10

On page 3, at the end of line 2, insert the following: "**The training requirement shall only apply if an online training option is available.**"

AMENDMENT NO. 11

On page 3, delete lines 9 through 16 in their entirety

On motion of Senator Fannin, the amendments were adopted.

The bill was read by title. Senator Gatti moved the final passage of the amended bill.

April 20, 2017

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. President	Fannin	Morrish
Allain	Gatti	Peacock
Appel	Hewitt	Peterson
Barrow	Johns	Riser
Bishop	LaFleur	Smith, G.
Boudreaux	Lambert	Tarver
Carter	Long	Thompson
Chabert	Luneau	Walsworth
Claitor	Milkovich	Ward
Cortez	Mills	White
Donahue	Mizell	
Erdey	Morrell	
Total - 34		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Colomb	Perry
Martiny	Smith, J.
Total - 4	

The Chair declared the amended bill was passed, ordered reengrossed and sent to the House. Senator Gatti moved to reconsider the vote by which the bill was passed and laid the motion on the table.

SENATE BILL NO. 195—
BY SENATOR CORTEZ

AN ACT

To amend and reenact the introductory paragraph of R.S. 4:152(A) and to enact R.S. 4:152(C), relative to the suspension of racing privileges; to require the Louisiana State Racing Commission to suspend a permittee who has a final and definitive judgment rendered against him mandating payment of past due financial obligations to any individual or business for the boarding of horses; to require the clerk of court to send a certified copy of the final and definitive judgment to the commission; to provide for the suspension period; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title. Senator Cortez moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. President	Fannin	Morrish
Allain	Gatti	Peacock
Appel	Hewitt	Peterson
Barrow	Johns	Riser
Bishop	LaFleur	Smith, G.
Boudreaux	Lambert	Tarver
Carter	Long	Thompson
Chabert	Luneau	Walsworth
Claitor	Milkovich	Ward
Cortez	Mills	White
Donahue	Mizell	
Erdey	Morrell	
Total - 34		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Colomb	Perry
Martiny	Smith, J.
Total - 4	

The Chair declared the bill was passed and ordered it sent to the House. Senator Cortez moved to reconsider the vote by which the bill was passed and laid the motion on the table.

SENATE BILL NO. 213—
BY SENATOR GARY SMITH

AN ACT

To amend and reenact R.S. 16:516(A), relative to district attorneys; to provide for the payment of group health insurance premiums for certain retired district attorneys; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title. Senator Gary Smith moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. President	Erdey	Mizell
Allain	Fannin	Morrish
Appel	Gatti	Peacock
Barrow	Hewitt	Riser
Bishop	Johns	Smith, G.
Boudreaux	LaFleur	Tarver
Carter	Lambert	Thompson
Chabert	Long	Walsworth
Claitor	Luneau	Ward
Cortez	Milkovich	White
Donahue	Mills	
Total - 32		

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Colomb	Morrell	Peterson
Martiny	Perry	Smith, J.
Total - 6		

The Chair declared the bill was passed and ordered it sent to the House. Senator Gary Smith moved to reconsider the vote by which the bill was passed and laid the motion on the table.

SENATE BILL NO. 234—
BY SENATOR LAFLEUR

AN ACT

To amend and reenact Code of Criminal Procedure Article 323(B), relative to bail; to provide that a secured personal surety specifically relate to identified property; and to provide for related matters.

The bill was read by title. Senator LaFleur moved the final passage of the bill.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called with the following result:

YEAS

Mr. President	Fannin	Morrish
Allain	Gatti	Peacock
Appel	Hewitt	Peterson
Barrow	Johns	Riser
Bishop	LaFleur	Smith, G.

Boudreaux	Lambert	Tarver
Carter	Long	Thompson
Chabert	Luneau	Walsworth
Claitor	Milkovich	Ward
Cortez	Mills	White
Donahue	Mizell	
Erdey	Morrell	

Total - 34

NAYS

Total - 0

ABSENT

Colomb	Perry
Martiny	Smith, J.

Total - 4

The Chair declared the bill was passed and ordered it sent to the House. Senator LaFleur moved to reconsider the vote by which the bill was passed and laid the motion on the table.

Rules Suspended

Senator Long asked for and obtained a suspension of the rules to revert to the Morning Hour.

Introduction of Senate Concurrent Resolutions

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 38—
BY SENATOR MORRELL AND REPRESENTATIVE MORENO
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To create the Task Force on Secure Care Standards and Auditing to develop standards and procedures for the operation and auditing of secure care facilities in Louisiana.

The resolution was read by title and placed on the Calendar for a second reading.

Privileged Report of the Committee on Senate and Governmental Affairs

ENROLLMENTS

Senator Peterson, Chairman on behalf of the Committee on Senate and Governmental Affairs, submitted the following report:

April 20, 2017

To the President and Members of the Senate:

I am directed by your Committee on Senate and Governmental Affairs to submit the following report:

The following Senate Concurrent Resolutions have been properly enrolled:

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 25—
BY SENATORS CLAITOR AND ALARIO AND REPRESENTATIVES FOIL AND STEVE CARTER
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To urge and request the citizens of Louisiana to recognize the lifesaving benefits of routine colorectal screening examinations and schedule such examinations as deemed appropriate by their physicians.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 26—
BY SENATOR WALSWORTH AND REPRESENTATIVE HOFFMANN
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To designate April 20, 2017, as Alzheimer's Awareness Day at the state capitol and express the continued support of the Louisiana Alzheimer's Disease Task Force's Final Report and the implementation of its recommendations.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 28—
BY SENATOR GARY SMITH AND REPRESENTATIVE GREGORY MILLER

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION
To commend Cara Ursin, a senior at Destrehan High School, on receipt of the Louisiana Gatorade Player of the Year for Girls Basketball award for the third consecutive year.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 29—
BY SENATOR GARY SMITH AND REPRESENTATIVE GREGORY MILLER

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION
To commend the players and coaches of the Destrehan High School LadyCats upon winning the Louisiana High School Athletic Association Class 5A girls basketball state championship title and to congratulate the LadyCats on an outstanding 2016-2017 perfect season.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 30—
BY SENATOR MORRELL AND REPRESENTATIVES BAGNERIS AND BOUIE

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION
To memorialize Congress to create a reliable, predictable stream of resources to address deferred maintenance needs in America's National Park System and to designate April 15, 2017, through April 23, 2017, as "National Park Week" in Louisiana.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 32—
BY SENATORS ALARIO, ALLAIN, APPEL, BARROW, BISHOP, BOUDREAUX, CARTER, CHABERT, CLAITOR, COLOMB, CORTEZ, DONAHUE, ERDEY, FANNIN, GATTI, HEWITT, JOHNS, LAFLEUR, LAMBERT, LONG, LUNEAU, MARTINY, MILKOVICH, MILLS, MIZELL, MORRELL, MORRISH, PEACOCK, PERRY, PETERSON, RISER, GARY SMITH, JOHN SMITH, TARVER, THOMPSON, WALSWORTH, WARD AND WHITE AND REPRESENTATIVES STEVE CARTER, FOIL AND SMITH

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION
To commend and congratulate the coaches, gymnasts, and staff of the LSU Women's Gymnastics Team for a record-setting season.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 33—
BY SENATOR PEACOCK AND REPRESENTATIVE SEABAUGH
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To designate May 17, 2017, as Diffuse Intrinsic Potine Glioma Awareness Day in the state of Louisiana and to raise awareness of this devastating childhood cancer.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 34—
BY SENATOR PEACOCK AND REPRESENTATIVE SEABAUGH
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To commend the librarians, staff, and administrators of the Shreve Memorial Library upon receipt of the designation, "Most Impressive Library in the state of Louisiana" from Reader's Digest.

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 35—
BY SENATOR PEACOCK AND REPRESENTATIVE SEABAUGH
A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

To commend Seborn E. Woods, MD upon his lengthy career as an extraordinary physician of internal medicine and to congratulate him on the occasion of his retirement.

Respectfully submitted,
KAREN CARTER PETERSON
Chairman

The foregoing Senate Concurrent Resolutions were signed by the President of the Senate.

ATTENDANCE ROLL CALL

PRESENT

Mr. President	Fannin	Morrish
Allain	Gatti	Peacock
Appel	Hewitt	Peterson
Barrow	Johns	Riser
Bishop	LaFleur	Smith, G.

April 20, 2017

Boudreaux	Lambert	Tarver
Carter	Long	Thompson
Chabert	Luneau	Walsworth
Claitor	Milkovich	Ward
Cortez	Mills	White
Donahue	Mizell	
Erdey	Morrell	
Total - 34		

ABSENT

Colomb	Perry
Martiny	Smith, J.
Total - 4	

Leaves of Absence

The following leaves of absence were asked for and granted:

Colomb	1 Day	Perry	1 Day
Martiny	1 Day	John Smith	1 Day

Announcements

The following committee meetings for April 24, 2017, were announced:

Finance	1:00 P.M.	Room A
Retirement	10:00 A.M.	Room E
Revenue and Fiscal Affairs	1:00 P.M.	Hainkel Room

Adjournment

On motion of Senator Thompson, at 9:40 o'clock A.M. the Senate adjourned until Monday, April 24, 2017, at 3:00 o'clock P.M.

The President of the Senate declared the Senate adjourned.

GLENN A. KOEPP
Secretary of the Senate

DIANE O' QUIN
Journal Clerk